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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Mjs. CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED ("the Company") which comprises the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after 
referred to as "Ind AS financial statement"). 

In our opi nion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the lnd AS, of the financial 
position of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and profit (including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics iss ued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient a nd appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matters 

We draw Attention to: 

(a) Note 36 regarding amalgamation of fellow subsidiaries of the Company namely 
Citygold Farming Private Limited, Devkrupa Build Tech Private Limited, Halitious 



Developer Limited, lleadland Farming Private Limited, Heddle Knowledge Private 
Limited, Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited, Urvi Build Tech Limited have been 
amalgamated into the Company vide order of the National Company Law Tribunal 
(NCLT) dated 12th September, 2019. The appointed date as per scheme of 
amalgamation is 1st April, 2018. 

(b)Note 37 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of uncertainties 
relating to COVID-19 pandemic outbreak on the Company's operation and 
management's evaluation of its impact on the accompanying Statement as at 31st 
March, 2020, the impact of which is significantly dependent on future 
developments. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matters. 

Other Matter 

Attention is further invited to Note 36 previous year figures which are consolidated by 
management on account of merger of fellow subsidiaries. 

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter. 

Responsibility of Management for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's abi lity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 



Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and arc considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

1\s part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess t he risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
htgher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
113(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accoun ting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, w hether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we arc required to draw attent ion in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. llowever, futu re events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
stgnificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We a lso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 



in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. 1\.s required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II. 1\.s required by Section 143(3) of the 1\.ct, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards s pecified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Ru les, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the /\ct. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

111. • nere were no amounts whiCh were required to be transterred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered 1\.ccountan.ts.._ 
~~1 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN: 20030917/\/\AACY4312 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 22nd July, 2020 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITEDON THEIND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315 tMARCH, 2020; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Compa ny has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and s ituation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company docs not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 
3(1) (c) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ti) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by 
the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material a nd have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
a ny secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') . Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 
3(iii)(b), 3(ii i)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(tv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the 
provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vti) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Goods and 
Service Tax and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues, Provident Fund, Profession Tax and Tax 
Deducted at Source and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the 
appropriate authorities. There was an amount of Goods and Service Tax of ~ 
74,020/- and Interest on tax payable~ 5,261/- outstanding as at the last day of the 
financia l year for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable. 



(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Goods & Service Tax 
or Cess other than mentioned below: 

- -
Name of Nature Period to Amount~ Amount Balance Forum where the 

the of dues which the Paid~ Amount~ dispute is pending 
statute amount 

relates 

I (F.Y.) 
Income 143 (3) 2009-10 10,17,08,240 Nil 10,17,08,240 lligh Court 
Tax Act, (Preferred by 

1961 Department 

Income 143 (3) 2009-10 14,40,09,320 Nil 14,40,09,320 Income Tax 
Tax Act, Appellate Tribunal 

1961 (Preferred by 
Department) 

Income 154 2012-13 97,070 97,070 Nil Commissioner of 
Tax Act, Income Tax 

1961 (Appeals) 

(vn t) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. 
Therefor, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(tx) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xu) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xtv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 



(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
dtrectors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
lJDIN: 20030917 AAAACY1312 
Place: Mumbai 
Delle: 22nd july, 2020 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies .1\ct, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESE.t\RCII LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction 
with our audit of the lnd .1\S financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining inte rnal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial r eporting criteria establis hed 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control sta ted in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation a nd maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including ad herence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds a nd errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under t he Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express a n opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accorda nce with the 
Guidance Note on .1\udit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by IC.t\1 and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financia l controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the IC.t\1. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require t hat we comply 
with ethical requirements a nd plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about w hether adequate internal financia l controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if s uch controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fra ud or error. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over fina ncial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fai r ly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of una uthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a materia l effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collus ion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has,in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2020, based on the internal control 
over financia l reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Contro ls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN: 200309171V\J\J\CY4312 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 22nd july, 2020 
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CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

UALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particula rs 

ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Other financial assets 

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade Receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
(i) Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 
(iii) Provisions 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

(ii) Curre nt Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabi lities 

(•) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabili ties 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
Total Curre nt Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral par t ofthe financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.). KOTHARI & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

L___...t.-'o ~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Propnetor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbat 

Date: 22"d July, 2020 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 
5 
6 

7 

4 
8 
9 
10 
5 

11 

12 
13 

14 
15 
16 

14 
17 
15 
18 
16 

As at 

31" March, 2020 
~ 

8,21,490 

37,500 
1,90,300 

76,13,506 
86,62,796 

20,03,69,298 

46,503 
9,81,872 

15,46,322 
91,31,99,313 

5,02,00,098 
14,67,516 

1,16,78,10,922 
1,17,64,73,718 

2,32,14,820 
(17,36,48,209) 

(15,04,33,389) 

32,59,004 

94,567 
33,53,571 

64,649 
78,57,839 

1,23,45,50,561 
8,07,96,995 

2,83,492 
1,32,35,53,536 
1,32,69,07,107 
1,17,64,73,718 

As at 

31st March, 2019 
~ 

10,47,687 

37,500 
1,90,300 

1,62,77,737 
1,75,53,224 

35,18,50,694 

44,507 
38,79,91,047 

27,99,289 

62,02,58,768 
18,65,464 

1,36,48,09,768 
1,38,23,62, 992 

2,32,14,820 
(25,66,87,613) 

(23,34,72,793) 

29,62,756 
9,00,000 
7,02,857 

45,65,613 

1,58,49,822 
1,43,99,714 

1,47,96,45,424 
10,06,91,924 

6,83,289 
1,61,12,70,172 
1,61,58,35,785 
1,38,23,62,992 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

;!:) SHRE~IITA 

Dtrector 
DIN03142640 

Mumbat 
Date: 22"d july, 2020 
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CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Share of Profit 1 (Loss) of joint Venture and Firm 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Changes m Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Jll Profit I (Loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense 
(1) Current Tax 
(2) Excess 1 (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

IV Profit I (Loss) for the Year 

v Other Comprehe nsive Income 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy I asset 

VI Total comprehe nsive income for the Year 

VII Earning pe r equity share of nominal value of~ 101· each (in~ 
Uasic 
D1luted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~L fi; 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date 22"d July, 2020 

Note 

No. 

19 
20 

21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

26 

Year ended Year ended 

31st March, 2020 3151 March, 2019 
~ ~ 

26,72,71,478 6,52,23,239 
1,18,47,238 1,73,19,905 

1,96,898 1,56,601 
27,93,15,614 8,26,99,744 

13,37,98,467 10,66,59,282 
71,88,337 78,82,464 
10,59,597 68,42,923 

1,37,380 1,66,411 
4,99,14,642 1,90,36,984 

19,23, 98,423 14,05,88,063 
8,69,17,191 (5, 78,88,319) 

( 46,93,416) 
(23,940) (75,02,049) 

8,21,99,835 (6,53,90,368) 

8,39,569 15,980 
8,30,39,404 (6,53,74,388) 

1,236.42 (983.58) 
35.41 (983.58) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

S~EHTA 
D1rector 

D1rector 
DIN:03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 22"d July, 2020 

GY 



Cl"fYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

CASII FLOW STATEMENT FOR TUE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Particulars 

I. CASH f LOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Nlt profit/ (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Ad d 1 (Less) : 
Rcmeseaurement of the net den ned benent liabiliy/ asset 
Deprecmuon 
Share of Pront/ loss of firm and joint venture 
Gain on fair valuation of Investment in Mutual Funds 
Advances and other deb1t balance written off 
Fmance cost 
PrOVISIOn for doubtful debts 
Advances wntten off recovered 
Sundry crcd1tors balance wntten back 
Excess prov1s1on wntten back 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add 1 (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease 1n mventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) 10 trade and other payables 
D1rcct taxes refund/ (paid) 

Nct ca sh now from operating activities 

II CASH f LOWS ARISING fROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

lnnow 1 (Outnow) on account of : 
Decrease 1n loans and advances given 
(Increase)/ Decrease in mvestments 
Sale 1 (Purchase) of Assets 
Net cash now fro m investing a ctivities 

Ill. CAS!! FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
In now I (Outnow) o n account of : 
Fm;mce costs paid 
Net cash now from nna ncing activities 

Nct lncrease In cas h a nd ca sh equivalents (I +II+ Ill) 

Add: 11ala nce at Ute beginning of the year 
Cash a nd cash equivalents a t the end of the year 

Co mpo ne nts o f cash a nd cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 

C1sh on hand 
B.tlanccs w1th Banks 

10 Current accounts 
Tota l 

The accompanying notes a rc an Integ ra l part of the nnancial statements 

31" March, 2020 
~ 

8,69,17,191 

8,39,569 
1,37,380 
1,96,898 

1,996 
54,079 

7,63,349 
1,98,78,468 
(98,15,000) 

(9,00,000) 
(70,63,902) 
40,92,837 

9,10,10,028 

15,14,81,396 
93,75,87,324 

(28,09,64,777) 
39,46,8 75 

81,20,50,018 
90,30,60,047 

(90,34,38,392) 
(2,00,890) 

88,817 
(90,35,50,465) 

(7,63,349) 
(7,63,349) 

(12,52,966) 

27,99,289 
15,46,322 

21,130 

15,25,192 
15,46,322 

Now: The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS- 7) statement 
of c.tsh nows. 

Note: Dunng the year fellow subsidiaries of the Company namely Citygold Farming Private Li mited, Devkrupa Build Tech Private 
L1m1ted, Haliuous Developer Limited, Headland Farming Private Limited, !!eddie Knowledge Private Limited, Upvan Lake Resorts 
Pnvatt Limited, Urv1 Build Tech Limited have been amalgamated into the Company vide order of the National Company Law Tribunal 

(NCLT) dated 12'" Scptcmlx-r, 2019 On account of merger we arc not prov1dmg prcv1ous years ligures (Refer Notc.36) 

As per our repon of even date 

Propnetor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumba1 

Date: 22"d july, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHRE~TA 
Director 

D=~~:. 
~u, 

Director 
DIN:03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 22"d July, 2020 



C IIYGOI 0 WUCA TION RESEARCII UMITEO 

\I A 1 ~Mt:NT OF CHANCES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 (lnt) -· Note Amount 

,\ ~.QUITY SIIARE CAPITAL 12 
,\\ at I st April, 2018 2,30,50,000 
(.hom, t · 10 tqu1ty :thare capital I 64 020 
A> .ot ht April, 2019 2,32,14,820 
Ch..~n l tn ··qulty >hart caprlill 
A> at 31st March. 2020 2 32 14 820 

II. 01 II~.R EQUI rY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRU~tENTS 

-· Reserves and Surplus Total 
Securities Premium Copltal Reserve General Reserve Retained Earnings 

Reserve 
IJ.tlante a t 1s t April 2018 37, 18,00,000 (38,04,91,266 (86,91,266 
,\,JJfLI.< >S : On account of merger Refer note 36' 34,36,25,000 2,81,29,900 14,50,00,000 69,93,76,859 18,26,21,959 
l' lll/lW>>l luo the vear (6,53,90,368 (6,53,90,368] 
lth•r ComprehenSive lncomt lor the year 15,980 15,980 
I oul Cuonprehensove Income for the year (6,53,74,386 (6,53,74,388) 
llalance at 3 1st March 2019 7 1 54 25 000 2 (I I 29 900 14 so 00 000 11 14 52 42 513 25,66,87,613 
llalance at ht Aorll, 2019 71,54,25,000 2,81,29, 900 14,50,00,000 1,14,52,42,513 74,35,54,900 
Profit 1 { l.u'>J fuo the vear 8,2 1,99,835 8,21,99,835 
Other Cnmprrhensove Income lor the year 8,l9,569 8,39,569 
I otal Cumorehen>rve Income lor the year 8,30,39.404 8,30,39.404 
IJalance at 3 1st March 2020 71 54 25 000 2 1!129900 14 so 00 000 (1 06 22 03 109} (17,:16,48,209) 

I he accompanying notes are an Integral part of the swndalone nnanclal swtements. 

Not, llunng the year fellow subsidlanes of the Ccmpany namely Cltygold Farming Private Llmltr-J, Devkrupa Build Tech Private Limited, liallllous Developer Limited, lleadland Farming 
PriVate l.oonotcd, lleddle Knowledge Pnvate Llmlled, Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited, Urvl Bu•ld Tech Limited have been amalgamated Into the Company vide order of the National 
C.Omp.1ny l.aw rnbunal (NCL 1') dated 12th Septe'llber, 2019. (Refer Note.38] 

,\\ ptr our report of rven datt 

HIIII. J. KO lllt\RI & CO. 
~ nn Hcgl trJuon Nu J05313W 
lhJrl(•rcU t\llUUOt..tOl!:t 

~~ 

I .Alii KU I'IIAIII 
Pr pr l't r 
~h &t • h•p "- .!0917 

Mwnba1 

D•t• U"'luly,l020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Or rectors 

Sllit.TA 
U1rcctor 

DIN: 03t372Jl 

*' DrrCt:tor 
DIN 03142640 

Mumbcu 

Date: 22""1uly, 2020 



CII'YGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTLS TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCii, 2020 .. 
Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

I 1- Company Overview 
C1tygold Educauon Research Limited is a public limited Company domiciled m India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company 
IS to .leqUire by purchase, lease or otherw1se, agnculturalland for farming. to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, furn1sh, convert, 
o~d.1pt. 1m prove, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, commercial & 
soc1.11 mlrasu ucturc facillues & amenities. 

1 2 The f1nanc1al statements are approved for 1ssue by the Company's Board of Directors on 22"d july, 2020. 

\ote 2. Si~:nifkant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

(i) Compliance with ind AS 
l'ht t flpanc1al statements have been prepared m accordance With the lnd1an Accountmg Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by M1nistry 
ollorporatc Affa1rs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read With of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 Js amended 
.md other relevant prov1s1ons of the Act. 

l'hc 11 ·ountmg pohc1es are applied consistently to all the periods presented 111 the financial statements. 

(II) llistorlcal cost convention 
rhe financ1al statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) wrtam financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) .1ssets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and habilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out1n Schedule Ill to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities or the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect habihty 
penod, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the 
1 cspccllve project. 

II. Signillcant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd AS requ1res management to make 
Judgements, esumates and assumptions that affect the reported balances or revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying d•scltlsurcs, 
and the d1sdosure of contmgent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that reqture a material adJustment 
to the carrymg amount of assets or liabilities affected in future penods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property 1s classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property cornpnses land and 
bUIIdmgs that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course ofbusmess, but are held 
pnmarily to earn reutal income ,md capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary 
course of busmess. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Princ1pally, these are properties that the company 
develops and mtends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates a nd assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at tile reporting date, that have a significant risk of caus1ng a 
matcnal adJUStment to the c:~rrymg amounts or assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company b:~sed 1ts 
assumpuons and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing Circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
renected mthe assumptions when they occur. 

Ill Revenue recognition 
Revenue Rccogmuon Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in :In amount that renects the 
cons1dcrauon which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A Revenue from Sale orLand 
Revenue from sale of land's recognized when the company satisfied performance obligation at a point in time i.e. when company is transfen cd to tne 
customer which is usually possession or land to customer. 
Revenue IS measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price com:essions, returns and 
financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government. 
The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April 1, 2018. lnd AS 115 establishes principles for 
reporung mformation about the nature, amount, timing and uncertamty of revenues and cash nows arismg from the contracts w1th 1ts customers and 
replaces lnd AS 18 Revenue· and Guidance Note on "Accounting for Real Estate transactions" for entitles to whom lnd AS is applicable. 

B Interest and dividend: 
Interest mcome from a financ1al asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will now to the Company and tht: amount of mcomt: 
can be measured reliably. lnterest1ncome is accrued on a t1mc basis, by reference to the p;·incipal outstanding at the effective mtcrest rate applicable, 
wh1ch 1s the rate that exactly d1scounts estimated future cash rc:ceipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 
:~mount on 111111al recogmtion 

Others: 
Other revenues fmcomes and costs I expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they arc earned or incurred. 

D. Pro lit f loss frorn partnership firms I association of persons: 
Share of profit floss from partnerslnp firms 1 association of persons (AOP) is accounted n respect of the financ1al year of the firm I AOP, dunng the 
reportmg penod on the basis ofthe1r audited/ management reviewed accounts, wh1ch is cons1dered as a part of other operating actiVIty . 

..dill=""""=--



(II"YGOLO EDUCATION RESEARCII LIMITED 

'\0 ItS TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

"'IV Property plant and equipment and depreciation I ammortlsatlon 

A On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of Its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable Interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisllion/lnstallation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
w1th the item will Oow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, e1ther on 
disposal or when ret1red from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is prov1ded based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on addit1ons to assets 
or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Computers & Laptops 
Furmtures & Fixtures 
Office Equ1pments 
The residual values, useful lives and 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

v. Financiallnstruments 

Estimated useful life (In Years) 
3 

10 
5 

methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 

A fmanc1al1nstrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another ent1ty. 

A Investment and Financial Assets 
1 Initial recognition 

Fmancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets 10 order to collect contractual cash Oows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Oows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income 
usmg the effective interest rat!! ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortis ed Cost 
A financ1al asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect 
contractual cash Oows and the contractual terms of the fi nancial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Oows that are solely payments of principal 
and 10terest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Meas ured at Fair Value 
Fmanc1al assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a bus10ess model with an objective to hold these assets 
10 order to collect contractual cash Oows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset g1ve rise on specified dates to 
cash Oows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the princ1pal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken 
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recogmsed 10 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
10vestments wh1ch are classified as equity Instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

F10anc1al asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCJ is carried at FVTPL. 

111. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash Oows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financ1al asset 
and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
nsks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained Interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts 1t may have to pay. 

If the Company retams substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recogn1se the 
110anc1alasset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Ins truments and Financial Liabilities 
Fmanc1alliabilities and equ1ty instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
mto and the definitions of a fi nancial liability and an equity instrument 

1. Equity Ins truments 
An equ1ty mstrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equ1ty 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are 1ssued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

n. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
F10anclalllab1lities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financ1al 
habiht1es are recognised initially at fa1r value and, in the ca~e of loans and borrow10gs and payables, net of directly ~ttributable transact1on costs. 



CII'YGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

~Oli:S I 0 Tilt:: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR T HE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on the1r classificallon, as described below: 
· Financfallfabilftfes at FVTPL 
Fmancial habihues at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recogmtion as at FVTPL. 
Fm.mc1al hab1hrtes are class1fied as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on habihlles 
held for tradmg are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Fmancial guarantee contracts ISSued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss It 
mcurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due m accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee 
contracts are recogmsed initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 and 
the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

· Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings 1n the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquiSition and fees or costs that are an 
mtegral part of the EIR. The EiR amortisation is included as finance costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabfllties 
Fmancial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligatic..n specified In the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an ex1sting flnancml 
hablllty 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respective 
carrymg amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Fmanc~al assets and flnanc1alliabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the rt!cogn1sed amounts and there is an mtention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecugnition of financial instruments 
The Company derecogmzes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the fina ncial asset expires or it transfers tht? flnac1al asset 
and the transfer quahfl~s for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company"s 
Balance Sheet when the obligation spec1fled m the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 

... Financial assets 
rhe Company recogmzes loss allowances usmg the expected credit foss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade rece1vabfes with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL For all other financial assets. 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant mcrease m credit nsk from IRitlal 
recognition m wh1ch case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance 
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financia l assets 
rhe Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any indication ex1sts, or when annual 
1mpa1rment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the h1gher of an 
asset's or cash-generating umt's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and Its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrymg amount of an 
asset or CGU exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and IS written down to 1ts recoverable amount. 

In assessmg value m use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects currt!nt market 
.1ssessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in determining fair value less costs of disposal. recent market transactions are 
taken 1nto account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impa1rment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

fnwng1ble assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that the1r 
carrymg amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 1mpairment testmg. the recoverable amount (i.e the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and tht: value-m-use) is determined on an md1vidual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely mdependent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to wh1ch the asset belongs. 

fl. Provisions 
A proviSIOn 1s recogn1zed 1f, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation th:ll Is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisious are determined hy discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
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"'OTLS TO Til£ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

• VIII. Taxation 

I. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable IS based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of profit 
and loss becauseof 1tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's 
current tax IS calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s llSJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal 1ncome tax IS 
recogn1zed as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there IS convincing ev1dence for realization of such asset during the specified per1od. MAT credit 
Lntlth:mentiS rev1ewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

li. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax IS recogmzed on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corn:spondmg tax bases used 111 the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
agamst wh1ch those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrymg amount of deferred tax asset IS rev1ewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax hab1ht1es and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting penod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current a nd deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity, m wh1ch case, the current and deferred tax are also recogmzed in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
Allmventones are stated at lower of'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 
A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 

recogn1lion is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) pro1ect, incurred for the purpose of 
secunng the project. These costs are recogn1zed as expenditure for the year in which they are 1ncurred unless they are separately identifiable and 1t is 
probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost mcluded m inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (Including 
borrowmg costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost. 

X. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowmg are mitally recogmsed at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds ( net of 
transauon costs) and thP redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
nwthod. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, wh1ch takes 
substanual period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocatiOn 1s 
suspended during extended periods m which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities arc substantially 
complete Investment mcome earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowmg costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
C:lsh flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby prof1t for the period Is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a nou-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, wh1ch are subject to an ms1gnificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstandmg bani< 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. l>rovlslons, contingent liabilities a nd contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it Is probable that an outnow of 
embodymg economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
reqUired to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ar·e discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the nsks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
t1me 1s recogmscd as a finance cost 

Conungcnt liabilities arc disclosed m respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occm-rence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly withm the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where 
a hah1hty cannot be recogmsed because it cannot be measured reliably. 
Contongcnt .1ssets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financia l statements. 
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'lol~ j l'ropcrty, plant and equipment (on~) 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office Plant& 
Pump Total 

La(!IOJ!S Fixtures Egutement Machlnea 
Co> I or deemed cost 

Ualance at 1st April, 2018 25,80,602 1,53,96,585 7,27,762 1,87,04,949 

\dd1t1ons(on al·count of Merger) 4,59,292 18,42,053 26,31,773 17,48,989 1,57,044 1,86,810 70,25,961 

lll>pO>.IIs 30,39 894 168,40425 24,23,722 223 04041 

Balance a t 3 1 sl March, 2019 3,98,213 26,31,773 53,029 1,57,044 1,06,1110 34,26,869 

Accumulated de ll rcclallo n and hllllalrmcnt 

llalance a t 1st April, 2018 25,80,602 1,53,96,585 7,27,762 1,87,04. 949 

Additions( on accoum ol Merger) 4,59,292 17,90,347 15,35,897 17,45,387 1,40,066 1,40,874 50,1 1,863 

~.llltJinatcd on dlspo>al ol assci.S 30,39.894 1,68,40,425 24,23,722 2,23,04,041 

lkprcnallon cxpt•nsc 20141 137,004 514 2,362 6390 1 66 411 

Ualance at 31st March, 2019 3,66,648 16,72,901 49,941 1,42,428 1,47,264 23,79,182 

tarrying amount as on 3 1s t March, 2019 31,565 9,58.872 3,088 14,616 39,546 10,4 7,687 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office Plant& 
Pump Total 

LaJ!tOJ!S Fixtures Egulemcnt Machlner~ 

Co>t or deemed cost 

Ualance at 1st April, 2019 3,98,213 26,31,773 53,029 1,57.044 1,66,1HO 34,26,869 

AdditiOn~ 

llisposals/Uisc.lrdmcnt 3,98,213 13,81,735 53,029 1,57,044 1,06,810 2 1,76,831 

Ualance at 3 1st March, 2020 12,50,038 12,50,038 

Accumulated dcprcclallon and Impairment 

llalancc at 1st April, 2019 3,66,648 16,72,901 49,941 1,42,420 1,47,264 23,79,182 

thmln.Jll'd on dlsposalfdJsc-arment of :1ssets 3.66.648 13,01,735 49,941 1,42,420 1,47,264 20,88,016 

() 'Prl'llilttl'll (.'Xpt'I\SI.' 1 37 380 1 37 380 

llalance at 31st March, 2020 4,20,546 4,28,546 

Carrying amount as on 3 1s t March, 2020 8,21,490 U,21,490 

Note Uunng the year fellow subs1dianes of the Company namely Cltygold Farming Private Limited, Dcvkrupa Build Tech Pnvate Limited, llahuous Developer Lumtcd, Headland 
l'.mmng Private L1m1ted, llcddle Knowledge Pnvate Limited, Upvan Lake Resorts Private L1m1ted, Urvi Build Tech Limited have been amalgamated mto the Company v1de order of 

tht• Nauonal Company L.awTnbunal (NCLT) dated 12°' September. 2019 (Refer 1\otc 36) 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 5. Other financial assets 

Non-current 
Pl'trol deposits 
Deposll Genera l 
Deposit with Municipal Authority 

Total 

Current 
Busmcss Advance to a related party 

Advances recoverable from others 
- Doubtful [Refer footnotes· (i)and (i i)] 

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables 
Other Receivables: 
Other party 
Less : Prov1sion for doubtful receivables 

Current account balance in firms and joint ventures 
Tota l 

lootnotcs: 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
~ 

10,000 
70,300 

1,10,000 
1,90,300 

5,00,03,200 
1,00,00,000 

(1,80,00,000) 

18,78,468 
(18, 78,4 68) 

1,96,898 
5,02,00,098 

As at 
31•• March, 2019 

~ 

10,000 
70,300 

110,000 
1,90,300 

55,09,07,106 
6,93,26,519 

4,620 

20,523 
62,02,58,768 

(i) \dvanccs recoverable mclude an amount of Rs.1,80,00,000/· paid towards advance against purchase of land. However, the management is of 
the view that 1t shall be able to revive and when there is recovery in general market conditions in the real estate sector. 

(ii) Advances recoverable include an amount of Rs.l8,78,468/- will receive towards society members. However, the management is of the v1ew 
that It shall be able to revive and discuss with society members. 

Note 6. Current tax assets (Net) 

Advance 'I ax paid 
Less Provis ion for tax 

Total 

Income Tax expense 
(a) Income Tax expense 

Current Tax 
Tax 1n respect of earlier years 

Deferred Tax expense /(Credit) 
Income Tax expense I (credit) 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the Company's tax rate 
Profit / (Loss) for the Year 
Applicable Rate ofTax 
Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (P.Y.: Nil%) 
Tax effects of amounts that are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 
Elfect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 
Effect of difference in rate of Tax due to MAT 
Effect of expenses that are deductible in determining taxable profit due to timing diffe 
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation 
Effect on deferred tax due to timing difference (Refer Note 11) 
AdJUStments for current tax of prior periods 
Effect of incomes that are not taxable in determining taxable profit 
Effect of expenses that are deductible in determining taxable profit 
Elfect of Brought Forward Business Loss adjusted 
Effect of incomes that are taxable in determining taxable profit as per I COS 
Income tax expense 

Note 7. Inventories 

Land and ancilliary costs 
Total 

1,29,66,867 
(53,53,361) 
76,13,506 

46,93,416 
23,940 

47,17,356 

47,17,356 

8,69,17,191 
0.25 

2,18,75,319 

3,86,77,617 

(1,82,260) 
(49,555) 

23,940 

(4,10,38,974) 
(1,45.88,731) 

47,17,356 

20,03,69,298 
2 0,03,69,298 

3,38,85, 923 
(1,76,08,186) 
1,62,77,737 

75,02,049 
75,02,049 

75,02,049 

(5,78,80,319) 

75,02,049 

75,02,0~ 

35,18,50,694 



t.ll VC.OI.I> WUCATION RE.'oEARCH LIMITED 

NOI LS fO I Ill FINANCIAL STATI:MENTS FOR THE YEI\R ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2020 

Not!! 1 Z. 1-:qulty s hare capital 

Authorlst!d Shari! Capital: 
·1.80.000 ( P Y 31st March, 2019: 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 
32.22,500 8% Non Cumulallve Convertible Preference Shares 
1,12,500 10% Non Cumulative Non ·Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ofRs. lOO/- each 
3.28,700 l'rclt•rencc Shares of ~ 100/· each 
50,000 10% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each 

roto~ l 

l\~ucd and subscribed capita l comprises: 

I 4UilY Shares 
8% Nun Cumutauve Convertible Prclerence Shares 

rota I 

.-ootnotl!s: 

(I) Rt!conclltallon of the number of Equity s hares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 

year 
tlalancl! dl 1st April, 2010 

Add Issued during tlw year (Rt!fer note 36) 
Ll·ss Buuglll back during the year 

llalancc at 31st March, 2019 
i\dd lssut·d dunng the year 
1.''" Bought back durln)t the year 

llalancc .11 Jht March, 2020 

(II) Rcconctlt.uton of the number of Pre ference shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the 
year 
tlal.rtrte .rt ht April, 2011l 

1\,ld I .sued during tlw year 
l.h> lluul(ht back Juring the year 

llal.lllcc at :llst Mar·ch, 2019 
Add bsul'd dunng the year 
L " Bought back during the year 

llalancc at 31st March, 2020 

(tit) Ot!talls of shares hi!ld by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31s t March, 2019 
~ ~ 

48,00,000 48,00,000 
32,22,50,000 32.22,50,000 

1,12,50,000 1,12,50,000 
3,28,70,000 3,28,70,000 

5.00.000 5,00,000 
37,16,70,000 37,16,70,000 

6,64,820 6,64,820 
2.25,50,000 2.25.50.000 

2,32,14,820 2,32,14,820 

Number of shares Share Capital 
(In~) 

50,000 5,00,000 
16,482 1,64,820 

66.482 6.64,820 

66,482 6,64,020 

2,25,500 2,25,50,000 

2,25,500 2,25,50,000 

2,25,500 2,25,50,000 

As at 3 1st March ZOZO As at 31st March, 2019 
No of shares held % holding ofthls class of No of shares held % holding ofthts class 

shares of s hares 

~ully p.tltl equity s hares 
lloldtnp, Cunrt>any ol Reporting Company (HCRC): 
tlubtuwn Limited with BeneOciary Owners 66,482 100% 66,482 100% 

(;onvcrllhle Preference Shares 
Alkt·n ManJil~nwnt and Financial Srrvlccs Private Limited 20,900 9.27% 20,900 9.27% 

tl.tn•krtshn.l Sl•curltles Private Limited 20,900 9.27% 20,900 9.27% 

F.n<lllliH'r India !.united 41,700 18.49% 41,700 18.49% 

S11:nur.r fllloin(e Priv.rtc Llmrted 16,700 7.41% 16.700 7.41% 

lrl.ll Medt.ln~s Private Limited 20,900 9.27% 20,900 9.27% 

Son.tl Co,mctl( (F.xports) Limited 20,900 9.27% 20,900 9.27% 

Pr.rbhav Industries Limited 41,700 18.49% 41,700 18.49% 

Son.rl Sri Chem Llnutcd 12.500 5.54% 12.500 5.54% 

Sonallntcrnatlonal Llmrtt·d 16,700 7.41% 16,700 7.41% 

(tv) I crm~ 1 rights a ttached to each class of s hares: 
Equity Shan! 
Th• ·ompany has a single dass or equrty shares having a par value of~ 10/· per share. Each holder of equity share Is cntrtkJ to on~ vote per share The 
comp.1ny dl·dares and pays dividend In Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of shareholders In the 
ensurng annual general meeting. 
In tht• l'Vent ul llquitlatron of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assetS of the company. after distribution uf all 
prdcrtntral amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

!'reference Shares 
8' Nun cumulative convertible Preference Shares of~ 100 each. The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted Into fully paid equity shares 
ol the Company on or after 1st April, 2012 or on s uch other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option 
vesll•d In the Company for conversion of the Preference Shares on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may deem Ot The call option has 
however not been exercised by the Company till date. 



• CITYGOJ.D EDUCATION RESt:ARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 13. Other Equity 

Heserves and Surplus:(other equity) 

s~curitics premium 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
1\d(t/(lcss). On account of merger (Refer note 36) 
llalance at the end of the ye:tr 

Genera l Reserve 
B.llonce ,It the begmning of the year 
Add/(l.ess). On account of merger (Refer note 36) 
Balance at the end of the year 

C.tpi tal Jteserve 
Jalancc ,It the be~inning of the year 
\(Ill/( l.e~s): On account of merger (Refer note 36) 
Balance at the end of the year 

Retained Earnings 
B.1lance at the begmning of the year 
Add/(Lc~s) On account of merger lRefer note 36) 
11rofit /(Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 
Items ol OCI recognised directly In retamed earnings 
B.tl,~nce at the end of the year 

Total 

Nnte 14. Borrowings 

Non-current 
Ltabthty !:Omponent of preference shares (At amortised cost) 
1,1l,500 (P.Y.3lst March, 2019 : 1,12,500 ) 10% Non Cumulative Non ·Convertible 
Rt!dee:nable Prefcrence Shares of~ 100/- each fully paid up 

Liab1lity component of preference shares (At amortised cost) 
211 (P Y.31st March, 2019 : 28 ) 10% Non Cumulative Non ·Convertible Redeemable 
!'reference Shares of~ 10/- each fully paid up 
rota I 

Terms of 10% Non-Cumula ti ve Redeemable Preference Shares. 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
~ 

71,54,25,000 

71,54,25,000 

14,50,00,000 

14,50,00,000 

2,8129,900 

2,81,29.900 

(1,14,52,42,513) 

U,2 1.99,835 
8,39,569 

(1,06,22,03,109) 

(17,36,48,209) 

32,58,724 

280 

32,59,004 

As a t 

31' 1 March, 2019 
~ 

37,18,00,000 
34,36,25,000 

71,54,25,000 

14,50,00,000 
14,50,00,000 

2,81.29,900 
2,81 ,29, 900 

(38,04,91 .26(:) 
(69,93,76,859) 

(6,53,90,368) 
15,980 

(1.14,52,42,513) 

(25,66,87,613) 

29,62,476 

;mo 

29,62,756 

: J I'\ on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares for Rs. 10/- each. The said preference shares will be redeemed at par at the end of 10 yt!ars 
I rum the d.tt• o: allotment CJr before a! the option of the Company in one or more trdnches. The Preference shares will be qualified for preferential 
p.tymenl ol dividend. As pc:r the second proviso to Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 where the dividend in respect of a class of preference 
sh.tres has not been paid for a pl'riod o!tvvo years or more such class of preference shareholders have a right to vote on a ll the resolutions placrd 
l•l'lurc the meeting. 

(1) Reconciliation 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of~ 100/- each fully paid up outswndmg at the 
bcginntng and the end of reporting year 

lid lance a tlst April, 201 B 
Atld ·Issued dunng the year 
L.es~: Bought back du ring the year 

Uala nce at 31st March, 2019 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less Bought back dunng the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 

Numher of shares 

1,12,500 

1,12,500 

1,12,500 

l,lL,50,000 

1.12,50,000 

1,12,50,000 
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CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTF.S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
As a t 

31st March, 2020 
~ 

As at 

31 .. March, 2019 
~ 

(1i) Hcconcilialion 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of~ 10/ · each fully paid up outstanding at the 
beginning and the end of reporting year 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Ado Issued during the year (Refer note 36) 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 
Add Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance a t 31st March, 2020 

( iii) Shareholders holding more than five percent of holdings : 
I 0% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable Preference Sha•·es of~ 100/· each 

Celestial Spaces Pnvate Lirn•ted 

10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of~ 10/· each 
llubtown L1m1ted with Beneficiary Owners 

Note: 

28 2,800 

28 2,800 

28 2,800 

100% 100% 

46% 46% 

. he prclerence shares have been classified as a financial liability as per lnd AS 32 and 109 if the issuer does not have the unconditional right 
to <~void cash outflow at the end of the term of preference shares, the instrument is classified as a financialliabiity. li enee they havr been 
grouped untler non-current borrowings. 

(;~I 

Loans lrom copmanies 
I"Otdl 

Note 15. Other financialllabililies 

Non ·..rurrrot 
Lease deposits from tenanL'i 
Total 

Uus1ncss Advance from Others 
Current account balance in firms and joint ventures 
Payablcs: Rel<Jted pa1 ties (Refer Note 27) 
Other Payables 
Total 

Footnote: 

61,619 
64,649 

6'1,34,00,000 

58,50,53,800 
60,96,761 

1,23,45,50,561 

1,58,1'J,8L2 
1,5!1,4'),822 

9,00,000 
9,00,000 

64,34,00,000 
71,17,872 

82,03,64,055 
87 63,497 

1,47,96,45,424 

l"hc Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company operate, the 
.1mounts so rece•vctl are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not measureable 
Jlll"CIScly. 
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CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2020 

Note 16. Provisions 
Non-wrr~nl 

l·.rnplo~·el' Benefits 
Provision tor Lr,ttuity 
PrOVISIOn ror leal'!! benefit 

TOL<tl 

Curren t 

Employee Benefits 
l'rovtsrun for Gratuity 
Provtswn for leave benefit 

Total 

Note 17. Trade payables 

Due to micro and small enterprises 

Due to others 
Total 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
~ 

94,567 
94,567 

2,31,619 
51,873 

2,83,492 

78,57,839 
78,57,839 

As at 

31 •• March, 2019 
~ 

6,21,248 
81.609 

7,02,857 

2,49.101 
4,34,188 

6.83,289 

1,43,99,714 
1,43,99,714 

As per mformation available with thl' company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Mediunr 
Enterprrscs Development, Act2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been 

rcltL'd upuu oy the auditors. 

Note 18. Other liabilities 

c;urr~nt 

Ad\•ancc from customers: 
• Related Party 
· Others 

Overdrawn balance as per books of accounts 
Other payables : 

• St<atutory dues 
· Employee Benefit Payable 

Others 
Total 

2,24,00,000 
6,81,331 

4,57,602 
2;!,!i8,062 

5.50,00,000 
1:1,07,96,995 

53,07,769 
2,21~.00,000 

6,23,820 

[,22,95,232 
6S,103 

6,00,00,000 
10,06,91,1)24 
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CITYGOI.D EDUCATION HESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Noli! 19. Revenue fro m ope ra tions 

Sal£ from operations 
Sale of !'lot 
Less: Sales Return 
l.ess· Shanng of land revenue 

Other operatmg revenue: 
Adv;mces written off recovered 
Lease rentals 
Amortisation of Advance Lease rentals 
SVLDllS (Servtce Tax) Benefit 

Total 

Note 20. Other Incom e 

lnto.:t.:st on Income tax Refund 
C:>mpt·nsauon I surrender of nghts 
G,nn on f'atr Valuation of Investment m Mutual Funds 
Sundty cred1tors balancl' wntlen back 
ll~d amounts Recovered i Hefer Note 36) 
ExecS> provtston wntten back 
Refund lmm Govt Au1honty 
Other Income 

Note 21. Cha nges In Inventories Of Incomplete projects, Finis hed Prope rties 

U~ nlilJI. Inventory mcomplete projects 
.Finished Propel ties 

l.css: Purchase Return (Land) 
Plot cost .tnd Expenses incurred on procurement written off (Refer note 25) 

Clo>nlg lnvcntot y mcomplcte projects 

rot;, I 

Note 22. Employee ben efit expenses 

S,tlanes, bonus, etc 
Comnbutlon to provident and other funds 
Stan waif are Expenses 
Other fund expenses 
TOL11 

Note 2J. Fina nce Costs 

I merest un preference shares 
Dclayed/pcnalmtercst on loans and s tatutory dues 
Unwmtlmg of security deposi t 
fowl 

Year ended 

31" Ma rch, 2020 
~ 

05,81,30,441 

5, 4,39,132 

98,15,000 

17.~46 

98,32,346 
26,72,71,478 

38,81,340 

1,996 
9,00,000 

70,63,QO.l 

Year ende d 

31" Ma rch, 2019 
~ 

10,89,48,490 
( 4, 73,40,000) 

6,16,08,498 

9,35,000 
21,20,762 

5,58,979 

36,14,741 
6,52,23,239 

10,00,000 
2,650 

1,33,20,970 
16,50,000 

39.427 
3,500 

13,03,350 
1. t8,47,2:~u ____ 1~·c.:.7:!.3~,1~9:.:,9:.!0~5~-

45,67,26,212 
60,33,073 

(14,80,000) 
~~(~1,~76~,0~2~,9~2~9)L_ __ ~~(2~7~,6~9.~ 

33,41,67,765 45,85,09,976 

35,18,50,69? 

~.03,69,298) (35,18,5\1,694) 
(20,03,69,290) (35,111,50,694) 
1 3,37,90,467 10,66,59,282 

70,69,576 76,24,475 
3,99,604 2,03,034 

6,604 43,924 

------~1~2-~5~5~~~----------~11~ 
74,011,33'1 78,82,464 

2,96,248 
7,63,349 

10,59,597 

2,69,316 
59,98,114 

5 75,493 
68,42,923 
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CITYGOLO EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 24. Depreciation Expenses 
Depn!(I.1UOn of property, plant and equipment 
fatal 

Note 25. Other Expenses 
llrJkcr:1ge 
l.egaland profess1onal fees 
Sccunty Ch.1rges 
Prov1s1on lor doubtful debts 
Work tn progess written off (Land expenses) 
Advances and other deb1t balance written off 
11.1d Debts Wnuen off 
l.and non·utlhzatlon charges 
Other Expenses (Refer footnote) 
TOld I 

Footnote A: 
•\ut.lnors Remuneration (included in the other expenses) 

Audit fees 
ro tal 

Note 26. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

1!.1 ·IC arnmgs per share 
D1'utL d earnmgs per share (Refer Footnotes) 

1.1;1\IC I::PS 

Year ended 

31" March, 2020 
~ 

137,380 
1,37,380 

20,85,000 
41,06,963 

2,85,501 
1,98,78,468 
1,76,82,929 

54,079 
1,73,508 
5,33,384 

51,14,810 
4,99,14,642 

so 000 
50,000 

1,236.42 
35.41 

l'ho c arnmgs and we1ghted average number of eqUity shares used in the calculation of basic earnines per share are as follows: 
l'rollt/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 8,21,99,835 
W£'tghted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 66,482 

D1luted EPS 
l'hc cammgs and we1ghted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earmngs per sh<ore are as lollows 
Profll/lLoss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 8,21,99,835 
W1•1ghted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnmgs per share 23,21,482 • 

Footnote!.. 

Year ended 

31•• March, 2019 
~ 

1 66,411 
1,66,411 

27,64,100 
16,60,900 

3,52,100 

27,69,309 
13,30,000 

64,44,320 
37,16,255 

1,90,36,984 

35,000 
35,000 

(983.58) 
(983.58) 

(6,53,90,368) 
66,482 

(6,53, 90,368) 
66,482 

I· '"the purpose of diluted EPS convertible mstruments (8% non cumulative convertible preference shares) deem to have been converted into equity 
sh 11cs a t the beg111mng of the period The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value bas1s. 

11 H% non cumulative convertible preference shares could not potentially dilute basic earnings per share hence are not mcluded in the calculation of 
diluted carn1ngs per share for previous year 2018-19 because they are antidilutive for the period presented. Diluted EPS is restricted to the amount of 
B.I,IC EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dilutive. 

<:IT\'C,tli.l) FOIJC:ATION ltESEARCH LIMITiiD 

II 

NO fiji ICl THf: IINANC:II\L S fATLMENn FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST Milll::..:C::.:.I:!.I...::Z;;.O:l.::.:.' .0::.._ __________________________ _ 

:\ut~ 27 IU. I .~\TED PARTI' OJSCLOSIJRES (As p£'r I Nil AS - 24) 

A N;une oft he relattld parties and related prtrties relationship 
lloldlng Company 

II I' I'll ow Snbsldlary 

Ill Other ~lgnlficant lntluenLe 

IV Firm in which Company Is a partner 

X c) Managemcm personnel, thl•ir rl!latlvcs and " nterp1lses 

Hubtown Limited 

Vishal Tethno C:omrncrcc P;·iv~te Limitl'd 

RJbix trading Private Limited 

Rising Glory Ocveloper' 

Mr Hemaut M Sh~h 
Mrs. Falguni Vyomesh Shah 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 28. l"lnanclal Risk Management Objectives 

The Company's activities expose 11 to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company's focus is to foresee the 
u pr ·d1,wbli1ty of nnanc1al markets and seek to minnn1ze potenual adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Markel Risk 
M.1rkct nsk 1s the nsk that the fa1r value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes 111 market prices. 

Interest rate nsk 
In wrest rate risk IS the nsk that the fa1r value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The comp.my's exposure to the risk of changes in market mterest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating Interest rates. 

· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 

2) Credit Risk 
C:rcdit nsk IS the nsk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financ1alloss. 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on 
rcce1pt of full cons1derat1on. 

Cri!Ull risk from balances with banks and 1nter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasu1y department in accordance w1th the company's 
pohcy 

3) Llquiulty risk 
The operatmg cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 29. Capital Ma nagement 

l'hl pnmary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support 1ts business and 
m:1x1m1se shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

(icarjng Ratio 
In order to .1ch1eve this overall obJective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financ1al covenants 
.ltt:tchcJ tn th•! borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 

l'hc gc:ann~: ratto at the reporting penod was as follows 

Uns~cured 13orrowings 
Interest accrued 
Tot.11 Debt 
l.css: Cash and cash equ1va lents 
Nctllcbt (A) 

Equity Share Ca1mal 
Oth~r liqlllty 
Total Equny (B) 

Debt li!IUity Rallo A/ B 

Note 30. l'alr Value Measurements 

ll'lnancial,\-;set!> 
Investment 
Other financial as~ets 
Cash and .:ash eQuivalent 
Tolill of Financia l Assets 

filldn.clal .lahllitit>~ 
IJOirOWIIIRS 
Tr .~de oavables 
Other Fmanc1al hab1hties 
.J:!>tal of Financial Liabilities 

31" March 2020 
FVPL Amortised Cost 

37 500 
5,03 90 398 

- 15,46 322 
- 519,74 220 

32 59 004 
78,57 839 

- 1,23,45,50 561 
- 1,24,56,67,404 

As<:t 
31" March, 2020 

32.59,004 

;$2,59,004 
15.'16,322 

17,12,682 

6,64,820 
(17,36,48,209) 

(17,29,63,389) 

(0.010) 

As at 
31•• Ma rch, 2019 

29,62,476 

29,62,476 
2,81.756 

26,80,720 

5,00,000 
(1, 70,34,602) 

(1,65,34,602]_ 

(0.162) 

(~) 

31" March, 2019 
FVPL Amortised Cost 

- 44,507 
1,94,94,934 

- 2 81,756 
1,9321197 

29,62,4'/6 
56,93 21<1 

37,16 80,683 
- 38 03,36 373 



UTYGOlD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

lllote 31. Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per lnd AS 19 'Employee Benefits' 
A. Defined Contribution Plans 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

An ,1111ount on 3,99,8931- (P.Y. 2018-19: ~ 2,03,3221-) under defined benefit plan is recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

13. Defined benefit obligation - Gratuity 
The Priniclpal assumptions used for the purpose of the acturial valuations were as follows, 

Discount Rate 
1-.xpectcd rate of salary increase 
1-xpected average remammg service 

Service cost 
Current serv1ce cost 
Past service cost and (gain)lioss from settlement 
!llctmterest expense 
Component of define be nefit cost recognised in profit or loss 

Rcmc,1surcment on the net defined benefit liability: 
J{eturn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 
Actunal (gams) I losses for the period 
Actunal (gams) I losses arising from experience adjustments 
Adjustment for restnction on the defined benefit asset 
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 

rota I 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 
t:,ur value of plan assets 

Funded status 

Movement in PV of defined benefit obligation 

Opcmng define benefit obligation 
Current scrv1ce cost 
I ntcrcst cost 
Actu.mal (gams) and losses on obligation 
closing define benefit obligation 

Movements in fair value of plan asstes 
Op~:mng fa1r value of plan assets 
lnterest•ncome 
Return on plan asstes (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 
Contnbuuon from employer 
clsoing fair value of pla n assets 

Asset Information: 

GratUity Fund 

Expected Payout: 
l·.xpectcd Outgo First Year 
1-.xpcncd Outgo Second Year 
1-.xpcctcd Outgo Th1rd Year 
l:xpcned Outgo Fourth Year 
Expected Outgo Fifth Year 
J·.xpectcd Outgo S1xth to Tenth Years 

Sens•tivity Analysis: 

6.80% 7.64% 
5% 5% 

7.91 8.98 

1,34,344 1,27,253 

66,495 59,595 
2,00,839 1,86,848 

47,463 3,035 
(8,87,032) (19,015) 

{8,39,569) (15,980) 

(6,38,730) 1,70,868 

10,81,000 17,19,730 
8,49,381 8,49,381 

(2,31,619) (8,70,349) 

17,19,730 15,12,947 
1,34,344 1,27,253 
1,13,958 98,545 

(8,87,032) (19,015) 
10,81,000 17,19,730 

8,49,381 6,58,435 
47,463 38,950 

(47,463) (3,035) 
1,55,031 

8,49,381 8,49,381 

Total Amount Total Amount 

PVO Payout 
1,97,666 

12,180 
13,047 
13,979 
14,974 
92,025 

As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point increase in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.7,92,598. 
As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.9,20,228. 
As ol 31st March, 2020, every percentage point increase in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.9,20,141. 
As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs. 7,91,636. 
SensitiVIty for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit 
obligatiOn by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant. 
ProJected service cost as on 31st March, 2021 is Rs. 67,466 

UTYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

:'110 I ES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAf<CH, 2020 

Narrations: 
1 Analysis of Defined Benefit Obliga tion 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

Year e nded 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

The number of members under the scheme have decreased by 33.33%. The total salary has decreased by 49.67% during the accounting period. 
The resultant liability at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has decreased by 42.82% 

2 Expected rate of return basis: 
EROA 1s the discount rate as at prev•ous valuation date as per the accounting standard 

3 Description of Plan Assets a nd Reimbursement Conditions 
lOU% of the Plan Asset1s entrusted to LIC of India under their Group Gratuity Scheme. The reimbursement is subject to Insurer's Surrender 
J .. .... .... . 



CITV<.OLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

b. As per lnd1an Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the companies Act, 2013 the business combination of entity under common control, 
the merger has been accounted using the 'Pooling of Interest' method. Accordingly, all the assets, liabilities and reserves of respective transferor companies 
were recorded at their carryong amounts as at the appointed date. 
On the scheme becomong effective, the company had consolidated line by line the assets, liabilities and components of other Equity of each of the Transferor 
compames after elimonating the inter-company transactions and balances between the transferor compames and the company and adjustments w1th 
respect to Jhgnment of accounting polic1es and practices, If any were given effect through retained eamings. 
The net 1Jennnable assets acquired on account of amalgamation (after elimmatong the intercompany balances) are stated below. 

Particulars As at appointed Date 

Total Assets 1,46,39,49,795 
i (-) Total Liabilities 1,64,64,06,655 
Net Assets -18,24,56,860 

1:. As per the Scheme of amalgamation, further equity shares of Face value of Rs. 10 each and 10% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 
each were issued to shareholders of transferor companies as consideration towards merger In following manner. 

Sr. No Equity and Preference Shareholders of Transferor Company Equity Shares Issued Prefer ence s hares %of Equity Shares 
Issued Exchanged 

1 Headland Farmong Private Lim1ted 13,452 100% 
2 Hahtious Developer Limited 3,030 - 100% 
3 Clcygold Farmmg Private Limited - 13 100% 
4 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited - 1 100% 
5 Urvi Build Tech Limited - 1 100% 
6 Devkrupa Build Tech Limited - 1 100% 
7 Upvan lake Resorts Private Limited - 12 100% 

Total Shares 16,482 20 

Note 37. 
l'hc COVIO 19 Pandem1c has spread throughout the world. The operations of the Company were impacted, due to shutdown of all sites and ofnces followmg 
n.H1unw1de lockdown by the Government of lnd1a. The Company has resumed operations in a phased manner as per directives from the Government of India. 
l'hc: Company has evaluated the impact ofth1s pandemic on its business operations and nnancial position and based on Its review of current indicators of future 
I.'Conorn1c condnw ns, there IS no sign incant impact on its nnancial statements as at 31st March 2020. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a 
conumnng process g1ven the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordmgly the 1m pact may be differ<:nt from that estimated as a t the 
J He of approval of these nnanc1al statements. The Company will continue to monitor any matenal changes to future econou11c conditions. 

ote 38. 
1-iguws of tht' prev1ous year have been restated by amalgamating accounts of the transferor companies with the company, 10 accordance w1th the nnal 
amalg.tmau on order of National Company Law Tribunal. 

The a~:companylng notes are a n Integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

J'OR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
C:hancrld Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
l'ropn c tor 
Mcmb"rsh1p No. 309L7 

Mumba1 

ll.ltt!' 22"" July, 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s. Varna Housing Limited 

Report on the lnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements ofMjs. Varna Housing 
Limited ("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the 
lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "Ind AS financial statement"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the lnd AS, of the financial 
position of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities fo r the Audit of the lnd 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accorda nce with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fa ir view of the financial position, 
financial performance(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 



This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinio,n. 



Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained al l the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 



(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For L.J. Kothari & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn.No 105313W 

J. L ,~~ 

Lalit Kothari 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th June, 2020 
UDIN:20030917AAAAC06483 



ANNEXURE "A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VAMA HOUSING 
LIMITEDON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31•1 MARCH, 
2020; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the 
information and explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any 
fixed assets during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any 
inventory during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 
firms, limited liabi li ty partnerships, or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided 
any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year 
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules 
framed thereunder to the extent notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, 
the Company has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central 
government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of 
cost records and hence the provision for maintenance of records are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the 
records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is 
generally regular in depositing, undisputed statutory dues, including 
income-tax and other material statutory dues, wherever applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the 
records of the Company examined by us, there were no disputed dues in 
respect of Income Tax as at the Balance Sheet date. 

(viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanation 
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any 
financial institution, bank or debenture holders. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the 



year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit. 

(xi) The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable 
only to public companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered 
by the section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been 
disclosed in the financial statements as required under IND AS - 24 Related 
Party Disclosure specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. Further, the Company is not required to 
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, 
to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debenture during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and 
explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

I L '-"~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th June, 2020 
UDIN:20030917AJU\AC06483 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofVAMA HOUSING LIMITED 
("the Company") as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that; 



1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th June, 2020 
UDIN:20030917AAAAC06483 
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VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3151 MARCH, 2020 
Particulars Note As at As at 

No. 31 .. March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
~ ~ 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 - -
(b) Investment property 4 1,19,28,213 1.21.89,044 
Total Non-Current assets 1,19,28,213 1,21,89,044 

Current assets 
(a) Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,633 10,229 
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 10,83,169 15,12,715 
Total Current Assets 10,87,802 15,22,944 
Total assets 1,30,16,015 1,37,11,988 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 7 5,00,000 5,00,000 
(b) Other equ1ty 8 _(2,76,69,535) (2,71,53,834) 
Total Equity _(2,71,69,535) (2,66,53,834) 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Fmancial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 9 4,01,33,050 3,99,95,402 
(ii) Trade payables 10 30,000 80,750 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 11 22,500 1,79,380 

(b) Other current liabilities 12 - 1,l0,290 
Total Current Liabilities 4,01,85,550 4,03,65,822 
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,30,16,015 1,37,11,988 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W 

G~ 
L ~~~ ,,_. co 

--=- RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 
( ;;' M: ~RSHIP ·,. !} 

~oUSINQ DIRECTOR 
\%' to. 3 917 /(! DIN:03141200 

~# ,10~1) 

VIA" 
~~ 
0 AtCO\S - .,. ~ 

LALIT KOTHARI <> 
PROPRIETOR ... 
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917 - DIRECTOR 

DIN:06843982 
Mumbai 
Date: 26/06/2020 f.¥'/ 
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VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

INCOME 

Other Income 
Total Income 

II EXPENSES 
Fmance Costs 
Depreciation a nd Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 
(1) Current Tax 
(2) Excess 1 (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 10/- each 
Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 
As per our report of even date 
For L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W 

LALIT KOTHARI 
PROPRIETOR 
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917 

Mum bat 
Date: 26 06 2020 

Note 

No. 

13 

14 
15 
16 

17 

Year ended Year ended 

3151 March, 2020 3151 March, 2019 
~ ~ 

30,064 
30,064 

10,22,546 
10,22,546 

(5,15,701) 3,97,871 

3,97,871 

(10.31) 7.96 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 
DIRECTOR 

DI N: 03141200 

DIRECTOR 

DIN:06843982 



' . 

VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 31" March, 2020 31" March, 2019 

Amount Amount Amount Amount 
(~) (~ (~) (~) 

I. Ca~h 02w~ ari~in.: fi:!!m !!Jl!:ratin.: a~:tilliti~:~ 
Net Profiti(Loss) Before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (5,15,701) (6,24,675) 
Add I (Less) : 
Interest and Finance Charges 
Depreciation and Amortisation 2,60,831 2,60,831 
Finance Costs 11,081 29,779 

Interest Income - -
2,71,912 2,90,610 

(2,43,789) (3,34,065) 
QJl!:[iltiDI: ~r!!fit l (L!!n) B~:Cor~: W!!rkiDI: Ci!gital Cbi!DI:!:S 
Add 1 (Less) : 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (3,17,920) (9,52,002) 
Increase 1 (Decrease) Trade Receivables - 53,46,000 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other Assets - 1,305 
Direct Taxes paid 4,29,546 1,11,626 - 43,95,303 
Net Cash now in the course of Operating Activities (1.32,163) 40,61.238 

11. Cash O!!w~ uisin.: fr!!m lollestio.: ;u;tilliti~:~ 
Net Cash now in the course of Investing Activities - -

111. Cash 02w~ ari~in.: fi:!!m Einao~:io.: a~:tilliti~:s 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Finance Costs (11,081) (29,779) 
Interest Income - -
Increase I (Decrease) in Unsecured Loans 1,37,648 ( 41,09,598) 
Interest and Finance Charges Paid 
Div1dend paid 
Tax on D1v1dend paid 
Share Issue Expenses 
Net Cash now in the course of Financing Activities 1,26,567 (41,39,377) 

Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents (I + II +Ill) (5,596) (78,139) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 10,229 88,368 
Cash a nd Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,633 10,229 

Bl:!:!lD!:iliati!lD !!(Casb and Ci!Sb E!lllilli!I!:Dls (Rd~:r N!!t!: S) 
Cash on Hand 280 330 
Bank Balances m Current Accounts 4,353 9,899 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,633 10,229 

As per attached report of even date 
For L. J. KOTHARI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

G~ FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W 

I --' '_I) c____.rd.. ftC' RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 
0 _.,... 

I II E 'BERSHIP •• I) 

~a 
DIRECTOR 

No. 30917 ~ DIN:03141200 
~ 

!Jd!l 
;$::~ 

:! ~~) ACCC\S ~ -
7 ~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 1:> 
PROPRIETOR * -MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917 DIRECTOR 

DIN: 06843982 
Place: Mumba1 

Date: 2610612020 



VAMA JIOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2020 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Varna Housmg Umtted Is unhsred Public Ltmited Company domtciled m India, incorporated under the Compames Act, 1956. The Company ts engaged Into real 
estate busmess speclalizmg m construction and development of lnfotech Parks, Cyber Parks, Business Parks, SEZ as well as sale and lease of com mereta I, 
mdustrial and restdenllal properties and other similar works. 

1.2 The finanoal statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26/06/2020 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial State ments 

(I) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS1 as notified by 
Mmtstry of Corporate Affatrs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act1 read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 IS 
as amended and other relevant provtstons of the Act. 

The accounnng pollctes are applied consistently to all the penods presented in the financial statements. 

(II) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
I) certam financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale. measured at lower of carrying amount or fatr valueless cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans· plan assets measured at fair value; 

(Ill) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operatmg cycle of the Company as per the gutdance set 
out m Schedule Ill to the Act. Operating cycle for the busmess acttvtties of the Company covers the duration of the proJeCt/ contract mcluding the defect liability 
penod, wherever applicable, and extends upto the reahsanon of recetvables (including retention monies, if any) wahm the credtt period normally applicable to 
the respectiVe proJect. 

11. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The prcparatton of financia l statements In conformity with the recognilion and measurement principles of lnd AS requires management to make 
judgements, esllmates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabtlities and the accompanymg disclosures. 
and the disclosure of contingent liabllittes. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material 
adJustment to the carrymg amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 
a) Judgeme nts 
Classification or property 
The company determmes whether a property tS classtfied as mvestment property or mventory property. Investment property comprises land and 
butldmgs that are not occupted substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company. nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held 
pnmanly to earn rental mcome and capllal appreciation. These butldmgs are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold In the ordinary 
course of bus mess. Inventory compnses property that ts held for salem the ordmary course ofbusiness. Pnnctpally, these are propernes that the 
company develops and mtends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Es timates and assumptio ns 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causmg a 
matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilittes wtthln the next financial year, are dcscnbcd below. The Company based Its 
assumpnons and esttmates on parameters available when the financial Statements were prepared. Existing ctrcumstances and assumpttons about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes arc 
reOected tn the assumptions when they occur. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 
Revenue Recognlllon Revenue ts recogmsed upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reOects the 
constderauon whtch the Company expects to recetve in exchange for those goods or services. 

A. Re venue from Constru ction Activity: 
Revenue from the sale of properties I Oats/ commercial premises I units In a project are recognised when the company satisfies performance 
obllgattons at a point m time I.e when controlts transferred to the customer which Is usually on gtvmg soft possession for fitouts or actual possession 
to the customer. 
Revenue ts measured based on the transactton pnce, which is the consideration. adjusted for dtscounts, rebates, price concesstons. returns and 
financtng component if any, as spectfied m the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government. Where the total project cost is estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, the loss Is recognized immediately in the Statement 
of profit and Loss Account. 
Amount recetved as Advance from customers on lnvotcmg f ra tslng demand leners are classified as Contract Liabihnes. The company's nght to 
constderanon tn exchange forgoods or servtces that the company has transferred to the customer are classtfied as recetvables. 
The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts wtth customers. wtth effect from Apnl 1. 2019. lnd AS 115 es!llbllshes pnnctples for 
reportmg mformanon about the nature. amount. ttmmg and uncertatnty of revenues and cash Oows ansmg from the contracts with Its customers and 
replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue" and Guidance Note on· Accounting for Real Estate transactions" for entities to whom lnd AS is applicable. 

B. Interest Income: 
Interest mcome mcluding income an smg on other mstruments rccogmscd on time proportion basts usmg the effective Interest rate method. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues I incomes and costs I cxpendtture are accounted on accrual as they are earned or mcurred. 

IV. Property plant and equipmen t, investment property and depreciation I ammortlsation 

A. TangJble fixed assets are stated at cost of acqulsttlon or constructton includmg attributable mterest and finance cost, tf any nil the date ol 
acqutstnonflnstallatton of the assets, less accumulated deprectauonfamortisation and accumulated tmpairment losses. if any. 

B. Deprectanon tS provtded based on useful hfc of the assets as prescnbed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciatton on addlttons to 
assets or on sale/dtsposal of assets ts calculated pro-rata from the month of such add ilion, or up to the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may 
be. 
Asset Category 
Office Equtpments 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
5 



,, 

Investment properties 

Property that Is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, IS classified as 
investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less 
depreciation and 1mpa~rment if any. Depreciation on building is provided over it's useful life using the wnnen down value method. 
Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for assets class are as follows-
Asset Category Estimated usefulllfe (in Years) 
Res1dential Flat 60 

v. Taxation 
I. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported 10 the financial statement of 
profit and loss becauseof items of mcome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deduct1ble. The 
Company's current tax ls calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s 115)B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid m excess of normal mcome tax is 
recognrted as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only 1f there is convmcmg ev1dence for realization of such asset dunng the specified period. MAT cred1t 
ent1tlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

II. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the financ1al statements and the 
correspondmg tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits w1ll be ava~iable 
agamst whiCh those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax llablhties and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period In which the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reportmg period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of Its assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Cu rrent and d eferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
In equity, In wh1ch case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized In other comprehensive 10come or d~rectly m equ1ty respectively. 

VI. Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other 
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due w1thm 12 months after reporting period. For trade and other payables matunng 
w1th10 one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fa1r value due to the short matunty of these mstruments. 

VII. Trade receivable 
A receivable IS classified as a 'trade receivable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of 
busiOe>s. Trade receiVables are recogmsed mitially at faiT value and subsequently measured at amortised cost us10g the EIR method, less provision for 
impairment. 

VIII. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowmg are lmtally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds ( net o 
transat1on costs) and the redemption amount is recogmsed in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrow10gs using the efTect1ve interest 
method. 
Interests and other borrowing costs mcluded under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attnbutable to qualifymg assets, wh1ch takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for 1ts Intended use are allocated as part of the cost of constructiOn 1 development of such assets. Such allocation 1s 
suspended dunng extended penods 10 wh1ch arnve development IS interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. lnvestment10come earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualify10g assets IS deducted from 
the borrow10g costs ehg1ble for cap1tahsauon. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

IX. Earnings per Share 
Bas1c eammgs per sh>re are calculated by d1v1dmg the net profit or loss for the year attributable to eqUity shareholders by the we1ghted average number 
of equ1ty shares outstandmg during the year. The we1ghted average number of equity shares outstand10g dur10g the year is adjusted for events of bonus 
ISSue, If any. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnmgs per share. the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the wc1ghted average 
number of shares outstandmg during the year are adJUSted for the efTects of all dllut1ve potential equ1ty shares. 

X. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported us10g the 10direct method, whereby profit for the period Is adjUSted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 1tem of income or expenses associated w1th investmg or financ1ng cash 
news. The cash nows from operating. investing and financmg activities of the company are segregated. 

XI. Cash and Cash Equ ivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent 10 the balance sheet compnse cash at banks and on hand and short-term depoSits w1th an ongmal matunty ofthree months or 
less. wh1ch are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes 10 value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstandmg 
bank overdralts as they are considered an Integral part of the Company's cash management. 

XII. Provisions, contingent liabilities a nd contingent assets 
A prOVISIOn IS rccogmzed when an enterpnse has a present obligation (legal or construellve) as result of past event and 1t IS probable that an out now o 
embodymg economic benefits of resources will be requ~red to settle a reliably assessable obligation. ProviSions arc determined based on best estimate 
requ~red to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the t1me value of money is matenal, prOVISions are discounted usmg a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects. when appropnate, the nsks specific to the liability. When d1scount1ng is used. the mcrease 10 the prov1s1on due to the passage of 
ume IS recogn1sed as a finance cost. 
Conungent llab1llt1es are d1sclosed 10 respect of possible obligations that anse from past events. whose ex1stence would be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly w1thm the control of the Company. A contingent hab1hty also anses. m rare cases, 
where a l1ab1hty cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 
Contmgent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151 MARCH, 2020 
Note Amount 

7 (t) 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 1st April, 2018 5,00,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2019 5,00,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2020 5,00,000 

B. OTHER EQ UITY 

Particulars 
Reserves & Surplus 

Total 
Retained Earnings 

Balance at 1st April, 2 018 (2,75,51,705) (2,75,51,705) 

Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,97,871 3,97,871 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 (2,71,53,834) (2,71,53,834) 

Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (5,15,701) (5,15,701) 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 (2,76,69,535) (2,76,69,535) 

The accompanying notes are a n integral part of the financial s tatements 

As per attached report of even date 
For L. J. KOTHARJ & CO. Fomd'" boh•lf ofthoG~""' 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 105313W 

{ .,_, / 

~ ~ 
RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 

) - DIRECTOR 

~ w t:.E:lO:RSH p ~ 1) ~~a~ 
DIN:03141200 

~ N •• 17 f1 ~ !') 

Ydt." 
~ ? ~ 

LALIT KOTHARJ ------ () 

* PROPRIETOR -
MEMBERSHIP NO. 30917 DIRECTOR 

DIN: 06843982 
Place: Mumba1 
Date: 26/06}2020 



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

3. Property, plant a nd equipment Office 
Equipment 

f 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 1.42.113 
Additions -
Disposals/Discardment of Assets -
Balance at 31st March, 2019 1,42,113 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 1.42,113 
Eliminated on disposal of assets -
Depreciation expense -
Balance at 31st March, 2019 1,42,113 
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 -

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 1st April, 2019 1,42,113 
AdditiOnS -
D1sposals/Discardment of Assets -
Balance at 31st March, 2020 1.42,113 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 1st April, 2019 1,42,113 
Eliminated on disposal of assets -
Depreciation expense -
Balance at 31st March, 2020 1,42,113 
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 -

-- -



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

~ ~ 

4. Investment property 
Cost or deemed cos t 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,95,57,675 1,95,57,675 
Additions - -
Balance a t the e nd ofthe yea r 1,95,57,675 1,95,57,675 

Accumulated deprecia tion and impairment 

Balance at the beginning of the year 73,68,631 71,07,800 
Depreciation expense 2,60,831 2,60,831 

Balan ce a t the e nd of the year 76,29,462 73,68,631 

Carrying amount 1,19,28,213 1,21,89,044 

Note: Details o f Income a nd Expe nse rela ting to Investment Prope rty 
Year Ended Year Ended 

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st Ma rch, 2019 
~ ~ 

Rental income derived from inves tment properties - -
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental 
income 2,29,976 2,12,473 
Loss from Investment Prope rties before Depreciation 2,29,976 2,12,473 
Depreciation 2,60,831 2,60,831 
Loss from Investment Properties 4,90,807 4,73,304 

5 . Cash and cash equiva lents 
Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 4,353 9,899 
Cash on hand 280 330 

Total 4,633 1 0,229 

6 . Current Tax Assets (Net) 
Advance Tax paid 10,83,169 15,12,715 
Less:- Provision for Tax - -

Total 10,83,169 15,12,715 
/' 

•. -



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

7. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 

50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 

50,000 (P.Y. 31st March, 2017: 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each fully paid up 

Total 

Footnotes: 
(I} Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the 
beginning and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less · Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 
Balance at 1st April, 2019 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st Ma rch, 2020 

(ii} Equity Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate 
holding company. 

Hubtown Limited with its benefeciary owners 
Total 

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, 2020 
No. or shares %holding 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 50,000 100% 

(iv} Terms I rights attached to Equity Sha res : 

As at 
31st March. 2020 

~ 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 
5,00,000 

Number of shares 

50,000 

50,000 
50,000 

50,000 

As at 

31st March, 2020 

(No.) 

50,000 
50,000 

As at 
31st March. 2019 

~ 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 
5,00,000 

Number of shares 

50,000 

50,000 
50,000 

50,000 

As at 

3151 March, 2019 

(No.) 

50,000 
50,000 

As at 31st March, 2019 
No. of shares % holding 

50,000 100% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of a ll preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 

8. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit/(Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

As at 
31st March. 2020 

~ 

(2,71,53,834) 
(5,15,701) 

(2, 76,69,535) 

As at 

3151 March. 2019 
~ 

(2, 75,51, 705) 
3,97,871 

(2,71,53,834) 



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2020 
As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
~ ~ 

9 . Borrowings 
Current 
Loans repayable on demand (Unsecured): 

- From Related Party(Refer Footnote) 4,01,33,050 3,99,95.402 
4,01,33,050 3,99,95,402 

Footnote: 
The Company has received interest free Loan from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company operate, the 
amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of s uch amounts so received is not measureable 
precisely. (Refer Note No.18) 

As at As at 
31st March. 2020 31st March. 2019 

~ ~ 

10. Trade payables 
Trade Payables(Refer Footnote) 30,000 80,750 

TOTAL 30,000 80,750 

11. Other financial liabilities 
Current 
Other payables 22,500 1,79,380 

TOTAL 22,500 1,79,380 

12. Other liabilities 
Current 
Overdrawn bank balance as per books of accounts - 87,992 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues - 22,298 

TOTAL - 1,10,290 

G 



VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

~ ~ 

13. Other Income 
Interest income 30,064 -

Total 30,064 -

14. Finance Costs 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 11,081 29,779 

Total 11,081 29,779 

15. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of investment property 2,60,831 2,60,831 

Total 2,60,831 2,60,831 

16. Other Expenses 
Repairs and society maintenance charges 2,29,976 2,12,473 
Legal and professional fees 14,455 56,932 
Other expenses 29,422 64,660 

Total 2,73,853 3,34,065 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in other expenses) : 

Audit Fees 10,000 10,000 
GST j Service Tax on above - -

Total 10,000 10,000 
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VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

~ ~ 

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (10.31) 7.96 

(i) Basic and Diluted EPS 
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share 
are as follows: 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

~ ~ 

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (5,15,701) 3,97,871 

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share (5,15,701) 3,97,871 

As at As at 
31st March. 2020 31st March. 2019 

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic 
earnings per share 50,000 50.000 
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VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, ZOZO 

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A. List Of Related Parties: 

HOLDING COMPANY 
Hubtown Llmtted 

B. Transactions with Related Parties: 

Sr. No. Particulars HOLDING COMPANY 
1 Advances received / recovered: 

Hubtown limtted 1.15.000 
(2,60,000) 

Z Advances Repaid/ Given: 
Hubtown limtted -

(52,91,000) 

On behalf payments made (Including 
3 r e imbursemnet or expenses) : 

l~ubtown limited 22.649 
(9,21.402) 

Footnote: 
Figures in bracket pertains to prevoous year. 

Balance outsta ndln2 pa a bles I receivables: 
Nature ofTransactions Amount 

31" March, ZOZO 31" March, 2019 

1 HOLDING COMPANY 
Payables 
Hubtown lomoted 4,01,33,051 3,99,95,402 

Footnotes: 
Related parttes are odcntil1cd by the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

t 9. Contingent Uabllltles 
The Company does not have any connngent liabtloty as at balance sheet date, as certtfied by management a nd relied upon by the auditors. 

·zo. In the oponoon of the Board of Dorectors of the Company, allotems of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and Advances contonues to have a 
rea losable value of atleast the amounts at whoch they are stated on lhe balancesheet 

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 

The company is exposed to market risk, credot risk and liquidity risk. The company's management oversees the management of these risks. The company's 
board of directors revoew and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

1} Market Risk 
Market nsk is the nsk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices 

Interest rate ris k 
Company has recetved ontrest free loan and it receives interest free funds for its opera tong cash now from its holding company as and when requored (Refer 
note II), hence the Company ts not exposed to onterest risk. 

2) Credit Risk 
The company IS not exposed to credtt nsk from 1ts operatong acttvit1es. Credit nsk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the 
company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. 

3} Liquidily ris k 
The compames cashflow reqmrement are met by funds rece1ved from its holding company 

22. Capital Management 
The primary obJective of company's capttal management is to ensure that it maintaons strong capital ratios in order to support its business and max1mlse 
shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

-., 
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VAMA HOUSING LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

Note 23 :FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

3151 March, 2020 31stMarch,2019 

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 

Einantial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalent - - 4,633 - - 10,229 
Trade Receivables - - - - - -

. -- ....... ---




